
CITY OF STOCKTON 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 

TO PROVIDE COMPREHENSIVE BANKING SERVICES 
(PUR 16-019) 

 
POSTED 3/02/17 
 
The following questions were received before the deadline. The City’s 
response is in blue. 
 
From: Dana Bockstahler [mailto:dana.bockstahler@bankbac.com] 
Sent: Thursday, February 23, 2017 10:43 AM 
To: Jayden Sangha <Jayden.Sangha@stocktonca.gov>; Alan Montanelli 
<Alan.Montanelli@stocktonca.gov> 
Subject: Comprehensive Banking Services RFP 
 
Jayden and Alan, 
 
Attached is a list of questions we have regarding the City’s request for 
proposals for comprehensive banking services. 
 
Thank you for your assistance in providing the requested clarifications. 
 
1. RFP Section 2.3 Qualifying Requirements 1. 

This section states “the bank must have a government services division that 
provides services to local government”.  We provide banking services to 
various government agencies however we do not have a “government 
services division”.  We provide banking services through functional 
departments.  Does not having an official “government services division” 
disqualify our bank? 
 
It is critical that the City’s banking institution provide dedicated 
government services. The City staff is committed and willing to look 
at the full capabilities of your financial institution and the ability to 
provide all services listed in the RFP. Given the size and complexity 
of our banking relationship, the financial institution must agree to 
assign experienced and dedicated staff to serve City’s entire banking 
relationship.  

 
2. RFP Section 2.3 Nature of Services 3. 

The section states “provide online notification of ACH deposits within 24 
hours”.  Please expand on what information would be in the notification and 
how the notification should be provided. 
 
The City’s staff downloads and reviews a Treasury Information Report 
on our main depository account every morning for the previous 



business day. This report entails detailed transactional activity for all 
credits and debits posted onto our main checking account including: 
Total ACH Deposits, Wire Transfer Credits and other deposits; along 
with all debits including: ACH debits, Return item debits, Wire 
transfers and ZBA transfers. 

 
3. RFP Section 2.3 Nature of Services 10. 

This section states “provide automated account reconcilement reporting 
services”.  Please provide a detailed description of the account 
reconcilement reporting services that you require.  Do you just require 
information or do you want a software system that performs the 
reconciliation? 
 
We do not require a software system to perform account reconciliation 
for the City. However, we would require the financial institution to have 
a user friendly and efficient online platform to download detailed 
account analysis statements, treasury reports, detailed description on 
transactions, closing ledgers, closing collected, float, previous day 
debit and credit details, etc.  

 
4. RFP Section 2.3 Nature of Services 13. 

This section states “provide a quarterly review of the City’s account 
balances and opportunities to improve the City’s cash management”.  
Please describe any specific information you require and the format. 
 
The City would like to hold regular meetings/calls with our financial 
institution to go over our current processes, operations & technology; 
and find ways that our financial institution can help the City become 
more efficient. The City is open and receptive to all suggestions made 
by our financial institution.  
 

5. RFP Section 2.4.3 Banking Services 15 
This section asks “Does the financial institution have the ability to confirm 
the clearing status of a check as an online service”.  Are you asking if you 
would have the ability to perform online research to determine if a check 
issued by the City has been paid? 
 
Correct; we would need our financial institution to have a strong 
online platform, to not only upload our positive pay and ACH files, but 
also to look up copies of checks, clearing status and details on 
various transactions.  
 

6. RFP Section 2.5 Required Services Pricing Schedule 
It is difficult to complete this Schedule because we do not know the product 
or service being provided based on Wells Fargo’s description.  How can we 
get a better understanding of these line items? 



  
See Attachment A for detailed description of all the services listed 
under section 2.5 “REQUIRED SERVICES PRICING SCHEDULE” (Page 
#21). 

  
From: Farone, Adam [mailto:Adam.Farone@bankofthewest.com]  
Sent: Thursday, February 23, 2017 2:35 PM 
To: Jayden Sangha <Jayden.Sangha@stocktonca.gov>; Alan Montanelli 
<Alan.Montanelli@stocktonca.gov> 
Cc: Campbell, Daniel <Daniel.Campbell@bankofthewest.com>; Moss, Kelvin 
<Kelvin.Moss@bankofthewest.com> 
Subject: Bank of the West Pre-Bid Questions to RFP (PUR 16-019) for 
Banking Services due 02/23 5:00 PM 
 
Hello Mr. Sangha and Mr. Montanelli, 
 
Below are Bank of the West’s pre-bid questions to the City’s RFP for Banking 
services. Thank you for the opportunity to bid on these services. 
 
BANKING SERVICES: 
 
1. For the City’s Worker’s Compensation & Health Insurance accounts, are the 

City’s vendors originating files directly to the Bank?  Please describe the 
responsibilities of the Bank in relation to these accounts/vendors. 

 
Correct, the contracted vendor/administrator for services, like self- 
insurance, will submit the files directly to the financial institution.  
 

2. Does the City use Payee Name as part of their Positive Pay services? 
 
Yes.  
 

3. Does the City primarily use an Armored Car service to transport deposits to 
a Cash Vault?   
 
Yes, the City uses Armored Car service for deposit transportation from 
one centralized location at City Hall.  

 
4. Are deposits centralized at City Hall/Treasury? 

 
Yes.  
 

5. What departments are depositing at the branch currently? Where? How 
often? In what volumes? 
 
Revenue Services at City Hall; Daily, and on average $600,000.  



 
6. Is “Deposit Compensation” in Section 2.4.3 BANKING SERVICES #1b the 

same as Earnings Credits?  If not, please describe. 
 
Correct; Deposit Compensation is same as Earnings Credit.   

 
7. In Section 2.4.3 BANKING SERVICES #2, “City is currently using a different 

financial institution for its Lockbox services”, what are these payments that 
are being processed?  Are they paper checks or online payments?  Please 
provide detail about the City’s needs for its Lockbox services. 

 
The City has a separate RFP for Lockbox Services at the following 
URL. All the details regarding our Lockbox services are included in 
that RFP.  
 
http://www.stocktongov.com/bfDocs/PUR_16-023_PUR%2016-
023%20LOCKBOX%20SERVICES%20RFP-USE%20THIS%20ONE.pdf 
 

8. The E-Box under “Lockbox Services” and E-Box Payments under “EDI 
Payment Services”, are these the same service just listed in two different 
places or are they two different things? 
 
These are two different things. Please refer to Attachment A for the 
detailed description of these two services and all the sub-items.  

 
9. What is the City’s typical and peak ACH submission activity for: 
 

a. Payroll 
 

b. Taxes 
 

c. Vendor Payments 
 

The City’s payroll is done on the 7th and 22nd of each month. On 
average, the City pays approximately $5.6 million per pay period to 
approximately 1689 employees; 90% of which receive their pay via 
direct deposit and the remaining 10% via paper check. The City makes 
three (3) tax payments each pay period using ACH.  
 
The volume for all the ACH transactions, including vendors and 
payroll, is provided in the RFP under “REQUIRED SERVICES PRICING 
SCHEDULE” Page #21.  
 
For additional description of REQUIRED SERVICES, see Attachment 
A.  

 



10. Does the City originate “same-day” ACH transactions?  Does the line item 
“ACH ONE DAY ITEM” on the Bid Sheet reflect this activity? 
 
Yes; Yes.  
 

11. What is the City’s current Investment Peg Amount for the investment 
sweep? 
 
The peg is set at $0 all ending balance is swept at the end of the day.  

 
12. On page 29 of the RFP the City mentions an “Affirmative Action Document” 

and we cannot locate this document. 
 
Please disregard this provision. It is not required for this RFP. 

 
13. What is the City’s peak wire volume? Has the City ever used its Daylight 

Overdraft? What is the City’s current Daylight Overdraft limit? 
 
The City’s wire volumes are provided under “WIRE & OTHER FUNDS 
TRANSFER SERVICE” of “REQUIRED SERVICES PRICING 
SCHEDULE” on Page # 24 of the RFP. In the last 12 months, the 
Daylight Overdraft hasn’t been used; so, the limit is set at $0.  

 
14. Standard industry practice is to direct debit client account for monthly 

banking fees. Will the City consider direct debit? 
 
Yes.  

 
MERCHANT SERVICES: 
 
15. Please list each department that is processing card payments at this time? 

 
The City is currently using 34 merchant accounts for various 
locations. Each merchant account location contains multiple 
terminals. See Attachment B for detailed description.  

 
16. Please list any new areas where the City may wish to take card payments? 

 
None at this time. The City’s needs can change going forward, so the 
financial institution must be able to accommodate any merchant 
service needs arising in the future. 

 
17. Software -   
 

a. Please provide any software or pos systems currently being utilized 
to process card payments? 



 
See Attachment B for detailed description. 

 
b. Please provide the name and version number being used? 
 

See Attachment B for detailed description.  
 
18. Terminals - please provide any credit card terminals, make and model 

number being used? 
 

See Attachment B for detailed description.  
 

19. Website -  if taking payments via your website, please provide the name of 
any software or gateway portals being used? 
 
Yes, the City receives revenue via our website. The gateway portals 
being used are as follows: Click-2-Gov, PayPal Payflo Pro, Caledon 
gateway, Auth. net VPOS, Verisign. 

 
20. Please list each departments monthly and yearly credit card volume and 

their average dollar amount? 
 
See Attachment B for detailed description.   

 
21. Please provide merchant statements for each of the departments 

processing card payments? 
 
See Attachment B for detailed information.  

 
From: CBrumley@fmbonline.com [mailto:CBrumley@fmbonline.com]  
Sent: Thursday, February 23, 2017 2:28 PM 
To: Jayden Sangha <Jayden.Sangha@stocktonca.gov>; Alan Montanelli 
<Alan.Montanelli@stocktonca.gov> 
Subject: RFP - Comprehensive Banking Services - PUR 16-019 
 
Good Afternoon Jayden & Alan, 
 
Please find attached questions pertaining to the RFP – To Provide 
Comprehensive Banking Services - PUR 16-019. 
 
It was unclear if questions were to be sent to one or both of you so I have 
included each of you on this email. 
 
 
1.5 Acceptance or Rejection of Proposal 
 



1. What is the timeline of the acceptance/rejection of proposal?  
 
Any potential contract must be approved by the Stockton City Council, 
which is anticipated to take place in late April/early May. Any 
notification of rejection would not occur until after that time. 

 
2. When will the oral presentation be held?  

 
The RFP document states that oral presentations may be requested. If 
the panel decides to make this request, the project manager will get in 
touch with the selected proponents. 

 
1.17 Method of Payment 
 
3. Is an invoice required for any monthly account analysis amount due? 
 

No.  
 
4. If there are enough compensating balances will an invoice still be required? 

 
No.  

 
2.3 Qualifying Requirements – Commercial Banking Services 
 
5. The term of the agreement will be for ten years. Is your present contract a 

ten-year contract? If not, how long is the existing contract? 
 
Yes.  

 
6. What year might you be in on your present contract? 
 

The City is in its final year of the contract.   
 
7. Is there re-pricing language in the current contract? 

 
Not Applicable.  

 
8. How are direct cost increases from the financial institution handled? 
 

Contract terms and pricing discussed during the execution of the 
contract are final for the entire span of the contract.  

 
9. Would this include minimum wage increases throughout the term of the 

contract or increases of materials provided? 
 



Contract terms and pricing discussed during the execution of the 
contract are final for the entire span of the contract.  
 

2.3 Nature of Services Required 
 
10. Banking requirements of the City – Clarification of accounts. You indicate 

there is one General main depository, four main ZBA’s – how many of the 
remaining accounts are ZBA’s? How many other accounts are there / what 
are the other types of accounts? (You indicate that all other accounts are 
ZBA accounts) 
 
As mentioned in the RFP, under “Nature of Services Required”, the 
City maintains one main depository account and 71 zero balance 
accounts (ZBA) for different operations.  

 
11. What are the average balances for the different accounts? Is this combined 

or separately? 
 
The City maintains between $15-$20 million in its main depository 
account. However, the average collected balance is approximately 
$950,000; due to the investment sweep feature that is used to earn 
additional interest for the City.   
 

12. Are ALL deposit accounts considered Public Funds? 
 
Yes.  

 
13. Please confirm that you are talking about a repetitive wire which is a 

template for a specific customer with varying amounts and frequencies vs. 
a recurring wire which is the same amount, same payee and same 
frequency (daily, weekly, etc.). 
 
Correct; the City disburses funds via both repetitive and non-repetitive 
wire transfers; in addition to ACH and checks.  

 
14. What accounting software is currently being utilized? 
 

SunGard, HTE.  
 

15. Does the City utilize night drop for any deposits? 
 
Yes.  

 
16. Are cash and check deposits delivered by armored couriers? 

 
Yes.  



 
17. What is the usage or volume of the deposit slips, deposit bags & coin 

wrappers on an annual basis? 
 

Bags – 6,000 bags (120 packs) per year  
Deposit Slips – 3,000 slips (60 books) per year 
We do not roll coin often enough to place orders. The current financial 
institution provides the City with (free) thermal credit card paper for 
our terminals. 
  

18. Automated account reconcilement reporting – in what form does the City 
require these be provided? Hard copy, downloadable extracts, daily or 
monthly reporting? Can you provide samples of current reports the City is 
receiving? 
 
The City requires all formats of reporting mentioned in the question  
from our financial institution for account reconciliation. The City is  
open to considering any banking institution formats.  
 

19. Please clarify your request of reports for all accounts – indicate which 
reports you are currently receiving or would like to receive. What would “all 
reports” entail? 

 
Monthly account analysis statements, daily activity reports, and  
online access to account information to download any required  
reporting.  

 
20. Quarterly review of the City’s account balances and opportunities – Will this 

include both reports and in person meetings OR one or the other? 
 
Both; and dedicated team that City staff can reach at any given time.  

 
2.4.3 Banking Services 
 
21. Deposit Compensation – What type of Deposit Compensation is the City 

referring to? Is there currently compensation in place for keeping substantial 
balances with your current financial institution? 
 
Deposit compensation is also known as Earnings Credit that a bank 
offers for keeping substantial balances. The City is currently 
compensated for keeping substantial balances.  

 
22. Interest calculation & credit on all accounts. Are all accounts interest 

bearing? Which are / are not interest bearing? 
 
Our main depository account is interest-bearing.  



 
23. Please clarify the depth of information requested pertaining to the “integrity 

of the funds transfer system.” 
 
Please provide a detail of controls and measures in place for risk 
mitigation regarding fund transfers.  

 
24. Expand on “confirmation of clearing status of checks.” 

 
The City’s ability to confirm clearing status of checks via an online 
platform. The City often requires a monthly CD that details all the 
checks cleared for that particular month.  

 
25. Only 8 banks within the State of California are authorized to maintain direct 

DDA’s with the State Treasurer’s Office and the State Controller’s Office 
and all are determined by size. Does the lack of being one of those 8 
eliminate a prospect? 
 
No; however, the financial institution must describe its LAIF transfer 
process and any charges involved.  

 
26. Direct Deposit of Payroll-Different transmission options – What format is 

currently utilized? Please list 
 
ACH and Positive Pay. The City uploads its positive pay files 
electronically to our current financial institution.   

 
27. Visa, MasterCard and Discover credit card payments – Elavon 

Please verify the transaction types/card brands Stockton accepts today: 
 
The City currently accepts the following types/brands:  
a) Visa 
b) MasterCard 
c) Discover 
d) PIN Debit 

 
See Attachment B for details.  

 
28. Does Stockton desire to accept any additional transaction types/card 

brands now or in the future? 
 
No, not at this time.  

 
29. What Stockton Departments accept credit/debit card payments? Please list 

each one with any specific needs such as software integration. 
 



See Attachment B for details.  
 

30. How many current physical locations within Stockton accept Credit, Debit, 
or E-Check? 
 
Total 34 locations. See Attachment B for details.  
 

31. How many Retail (card-swipe) locations? 
 
Total 34 locations. See Attachment B for details 
 

32. How many mail order/telephone order locations? 
 

See Attachment B for details. 
 

33. How many Internet locations/websites? 
 

Yes, the City receives revenues via our website. The gateway portals 
being used are: Click-2-Gov, PayPal Payflo Pro, Caledon gateway, 
Auth. net VPOS, Verisign. 

 
34. What is the current dollar volume and transaction count for Credit/Debit 

payments processed daily, monthly, or annually by Stockton? 
 
See Attachment B for details. 

 
35. Please provide details of any Stockton owned hardware and software that 

is currently in place for Credit, Debit, or E-Check processing? 
 

a. Hardware – Terminal manufacturer and model number(s) 
 

See Attachment B for details. 
 

b. Software – Manufacturer and version number(s) 
 

See Attachment B for details. 
 

c. Does Stockton intend to continue utilizing the current hardware 
and/or software in the future or is Stockton interested in upgrading 
hardware/software? If upgrading, what additional functionality would 
Stockton like to gain? 

 
Stockton intends to continue utilizing the current hardware. However, 
we are open to suggestions to bring optimal efficiency in our 
operations.  
 



36. City-wide, what percentage of transactions are processed at Retail (card-
swipe); what percentage are processed in a mail-order/telephone-order 
environment (key-entered); and what percentage are accepted via the 
Internet (customer key entered)? 
 
See Attachment B for details. 
 

37. Who is the incumbent electronic payments processor for Stockton and, if 
under contract, when does the current contract expire? 
 
Wells Fargo Merchant Services is our payment processor. We are not 
under a contract.  

 
38. Can we get copies of the three most recent months of credit card processing 

statements for each Stockton merchant ID number? 
 
See Attachment B for details. 

 
39. What software programs will the successful bidder be required to integrate 

with? 
 
See Attachment B for details. 

 
40. Does Stockton currently charge, or plan to charge, a convenience or service 

fee to the cardholder for use of a Debit or Credit card? If yes, please expand 
upon how and when this fee is currently charged or where and when 
Stockton anticipates it will be charged in the future. 

 
No, the City is not planning on charging a fee for card transactions.  
 
a. If yes, please provide (at minimum) the following information: 

 
1) Which transactions are subject to the fee? N/A 
2) What is the amount of the fee and/or how is the fee amount 

determined? N/A 
3) Which payment types are charged a fee (credit, debit, e-

check, etc.) and is the fee consistent by payment type or 
different? N/A 

4) If a fee is assessed for credit cards, which brands are 
accepted (Visa, MasterCard, Discover, etc.) N/A 

5) Is the fee charged/retained by Stockton or a third-party 
(please identify)? N/A 

 
41. Is Stockton PCI compliant? 

 



The City is currently using TrustWave for reporting and is compliant. 
The City is currently a level 3.  

 
42. Does Stockton anticipate that any additional departments, not currently 

accepting payments today, will desire to implement a merchant services 
program for payment acceptance in the future? 
 
No, not at this time. However, the City’s needs could change, so the 
financial institution must be able to accommodate any merchant 
service needs arising in the future.  

 
43. When and how does the City receive funds for each day’s transactions? Is 

settlement currently by ACH or Fed Wire? Are settlement amounts listed 
separately on the bank statement or do they appear as one lump sum? Are 
settlement amounts broken out by merchant location? 
 
The City uses Wells Fargo for its deposits which provides next day 
funding through electronic transfers. The following table lists the 
availability schedule for Visa and MasterCard settlement. To receive 
next business day funding to Wells Fargo demand deposit account 
(DDA), we transmit settlement files within the established cutoff times. 

 

  
 

44. Is the current bankcard relationship managed by a separate unit of the 
financial institution, or by the Account Relationship Manager? 
 
It’s managed by a separate unit of our financial institution and we have 
a dedicated relationship manager for our merchant card services.  

 
45. Frequency & format of Reports-What reports is the City referring to? What 

reports is the City currently receiving – and in what format? 
 
Includes all statements and reports including merchant card 
statements and online access. The City currently receives all 



statements and reports in various formats: online extracts, hard copy 
and upon request.  

 
46. Compensating the financial institution on fee or balance basis – Which 

would the City prefer? Will invoices be required? 
 
The City is open to suggestions and willing to consider both.  

 
47. Conversion/transition plan to transfer assets & all banking services – how 

many and where are the main “hubs” where the different products/services 
would need to be implemented? 
 
The City’s Revenue Services division is located at City Hall; this is the 
main hub where the majority of the cash and non-cash transactions 
take place.  

 
48. Educating and training City employees – How many employees will be part 

of this process? How many locations will need to be covered/included? 
 
Approximately 20-30 employees will need to be trained/educated at 
one central training location.  

 
49. Required Services Pricing Schedule-Subaccount Maintenance – How many 

and what type of accounts does this encompass? 
 
This encompasses the entire banking relationship of the City of  
Stockton including the main account and all the ZBA accounts.  
 

50. Do you currently utilize Positive Pay Payee Verification? If so, for all 
accounts/which accounts? 
 
Yes; for all accounts.  

 
51. Is the City charged for recoupment? 

 
Yes, this charge varies from month to month based on the average  
monthly ledger balance.  
 

52. Please provide more clarification on the following: 
 

a. E-Box Monthly Maintenance 
 
See Attachment A for detailed description of the services listed  
under “REQUIRED SERVICES PRICING SCHEDULE”  

 
b. ACH Fax Service – will the City want to continue with this service? 



 
Yes.  

 
c. EDI Payment Services – E-Box Payment 
 

See Attachment A for detailed description of the services listed 
under “REQUIRED SERVICES PRICING SCHEDULE”.  

 
53. Proposal Fee (Under Separate Cover)-Is this to be submitted in a separate 

envelope?  
 
Yes, your organization’s proposal fee should be submitted separately 
from the rest of the proposal. The proposal fee should also be sealed. 

 
54. Does this need to include a separate cover letter?  

 
A separate cover letter is not required. 

 
55. All proposals must be signed with the full name of the proponent…or by an 

authorized officer if a corporation. Clarification of “authorized officer” title as 
signer for the corporation – Bank President or the assigned Relationship 
Manager?  
 
The proposal should be signed by someone at the Bank President 
level. 

 
56. Statement of Personal History. Principal Officers of F&M – clarification of 

which principal officers are required to complete the requested form.  
 
We are requesting resumes for the principal parties that would be 
involved in a banking relationship with the City. 

 
57. Will you provide the required Statement of Personal History?  

 
No. This is a statement provided by the proponent. 

 
58. Armored Courier Deposits – Is this utilized? If yes: 

 
Yes.  

 
59. Number of deposit accounts involved? 

 
One main depository account.  

 
60. Scheduled delivery days for deposits to the Bank or processor? Anticipated 

time of day for delivery & method? 



 
Daily with average volume of approximately $600,000.  

 
61. Is deposit credit expected on a same day basis? 

 
Next business day.  

 
62. How much currency (and denomination types) would be estimated to be 

involved in a “typical” week? Coin activity? Are the deposits mixed – 
cash/coin & check? Or separate? 
 
Daily with average volume of approximately $600,000. The deposit 
involves cash and coins.  
 

63. Protocol concerning any deposit adjustments/out of balance situations? Is 
notification required? To whom? 
 
A notification will be required to the City’s staff at Revenue Services 
Division.  

 
64. Are deposit receipts expected? To be sent where? Mailed or scanned? 

 
Yes; to the Revenue Services Division at City Hall. Both mailed and 
scanned.  

 
65. Will there be any cash order requests involved? Please provide an estimate 

of amount and frequency and if deliveries are by armored courier. 
 
Yes. Cash is ordered approximately 6 times per month in amounts 
ranging from approximately $600 – $1500 per order 

 
66. Process for handling of any deposited checks returned unpaid? Does the 

City want the Bank to redeposit 1X? 
 
Redeposited one time.  

 
67. Would Remote Deposit Capture (RDC) be a viable option/would the City be 

interested in RDC and consider it for different department check deposits? 
 
City is open to considering Remote Deposit Capture.  

 
From: troy.kidd@usbank.com [mailto:troy.kidd@usbank.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, February 22, 2017 3:24 PM 
To: Alan Montanelli <Alan.Montanelli@stocktonca.gov>; Jayden Sangha 
<Jayden.Sangha@stocktonca.gov> 
Subject: City of Stockton - RFP (PUR 16-019) 



 
Hi Jayden / Alan,  
 
I hope the week is going well. Please find attached questions from U. S. Bank.  
 
 
Banking Services 
 
1. Would it be possible to obtain a recent analysis statement?  
 

Three months of data from our account analysis statement is 
 provided in the RFP under “REQUIRED SERVICES PRICING  
SCHEDULE”. Also, please see Attachment A to see the detailed  
description of each service.  
 

2. What is the average collected balance the City is carrying in General 
operating DDA account?  
 
The City maintains between $15-$20 million in our main depository 
account. However, the average collected balance is approximately 
$950,000; due to the investment sweep feature that’s used to earn 
additional interest for the City.   

 
3. Is the city willing to consider a 5 Contract term with a 5 year option? In other 

words a pricing review after 5 years?  
 
The financial institution’s proposal should include pricing/fee 
schedule for ten years as appropriate for that financial institution. 

 
4. What is the total monthly dollar amount the City uses for outgoing ACH? 

This would include payroll, etc.  
 
On average the monthly total is $12 million (including ACHs and 
Payroll).  
  

5. Is the City currently on Secured funding for ACH?  
 
Yes.  

 
Merchant Services  
 
Section 2.3 
 
6. Please disclose how many current locations are accepting payments?  

 
Please see Attachment B for detailed description.   



 
7. What is the annual volume of each location accepting payments? 

 
See Attachment B for detailed description.   

 
8. What is the annual transaction count each location accepting payments? 

 
See Attachment B for detailed description.   

 
9. Please detail how transactions are processed. Please provide the hardware 

/ software, web (gateway) used to process payments?  
 

See Attachment B for detailed description.   
 
10. Who is the current Merchant Services provider?  
 

Wells Fargo Merchant Services.  
 
From: mllopez@wellsfargo.com [mailto:mllopez@wellsfargo.com]  
Sent: Thursday, February 23, 2017 3:05 PM 
To: Jayden Sangha <Jayden.Sangha@stocktonca.gov>; Alan Montanelli 
<Alan.Montanelli@stocktonca.gov> 
Subject: City of Stockton - RFP (PUR 16-019) 
 
Hello Jayden and Alan 
Attached please find Wells Fargo’s request for clarification/questions 
pertaining to the Banking Services RFP (PUR 16-019).  Thank you!  
 
1. Page 2, Proponent’s Checklist, first bullet; “submit pages 30 to 32 and 

Questionnaire in Section 2.0”; 
Can you please clarify which part is the questionnaire in Section 2.0 that 
needs to be placed in front of our proposal?  
 
Please submit answers to all questions in Section 2. Answers to 
questions starting in Section 2.4 (specifically Section 2.4.3-Banking 
Services and Section 2.5-Required Services Pricing Schedule) are 
required information and must be provided with your proposal in order 
to be considered a viable candidate for this contract. This information 
should be placed at the front of your proposal. 

 
2. Page 2, Proponent’s Checklist, third bullet: Complete and sign the 

“Proponent’s Fee Schedule” form (under separate cover). Couldn’t locate 
the Fee Schedule, was it included? Can we submit our own pricing/fee 
schedule in our own format?  
 



Please submit a pricing/fee schedule in your own format. This fee 
schedule should be submitted under separate cover and sealed. 

 
From: Becky Deal [mailto:bmdeal@bankofstockton.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, February 22, 2017 10:39 AM 
To: Jayden Sangha <Jayden.Sangha@stocktonca.gov>; Alan Montanelli 
<Alan.Montanelli@stocktonca.gov> 
Cc: Becky Deal <bmdeal@bankofstockton.com>; Teresa Brignolo-Seely 
<tseely@bankofstockton.com> 
Subject: Bank of Stockton Question for City of Stockton RFP 
 
Hello Jayden and Alan, 
  
Please see below for a list of questions in regards to the RFP: 
  

1. Will the city provide current merchant bankcard processing statements to 
facilitate a comprehensive pricing analysis? 
 
Yes, See Attachment B.  

 
2. Will the city provide a current analysis statement to allow for accurate month 

to month comparison? 
 
Three months of data from our account analysis statements is 
provided in the RFP under “REQUIRED SERVICES PRICING 
SCHEDULE”.  Also, please see Attachment A to see the detailed 
description of each service. 

 
3. There appears to be a conflict of proposal binding requirements listed in the 

RFP. Page 2 states: Submit one (1) ORIGINAL (unbound, no staples) and 
SIX (6) COPIES of all proposal documents. Additionally, submit one (1) CD 
or USB Flash Drive with an electronic version of the proposal.        Page 27 
states: 3.0.8 The proposal must be submitted, typewritten on 8½” X 11” 
white paper and must be bound in a secure manner. Please clarify the cities 
binding requirements.  
 
There is no conflict. The City is asking for one (1) ORIGINAL (unbound, 
no staples) and six (6) copies, for a total of seven (7). All proposals 
should be typewritten on 8½” X 11” white paper. The six (6) copies 
should be securely bound. However, the original proposal should be 
submitted unbound to facilitate scanning. 

  
 
POSTED 2/09/17 
 

 



1.  Communication – please send your communication via email. 
 
2. Questions – the last day to make inquiries is February 23, 2017. 
 
3.  Answers – clarifications and answers will be posted by March 2, 2017. 
 
4.  Proposals due promptly by 2:00 pm, Thursday, March 16, 2017, City Clerk’s 

Office. 
 
 


